In accordance with Sections 859A and 859J of the Companies Act 2006.

MR01 Particulars of a charge



		ee is be payable with this form ase see 'How to pay' on the last page.	
√	You may use this form to register You a charge created or evidenced by regis	may not use this form to ster a charge where there is no rument. Use form MR08.	For further information, please refer to our guidance at: www.gov.uk/companieshouse
	This form must be delivered to the Registr 21 days beginning with the day after the dat delivered outside of the 21 days it will be reje court order extending the time for delivery. You must enclose a certified copy of the instractions and placed on the public record. Do	e of creation of the charge cted unless it is accompar cument with this form. This	*A6ZF8G8J* 8 09/02/2018 #14 COMPANIES HOUSE
1	Company details		1 / A I I I I I I I I I
Company number	1 0 2 8 6 4 2 5		Filling in this form
Company name in full	CURLEW THIRD LETTING GP2 LIMIT	ΓED acting as general partner	Please complete in typescript or in bold black capitals.
	of CURLEW THIRD LETTING L.P. (LP	P017524) 🗸	All fields are mandatory unless specified or indicated by *
2	Charge creation date	/	
Charge creation date	d 0 d 1	^y 8	
3	Names of persons, security agents	or trustees entitled to the c	harge
	Please show the names of each of the person entitled to the charge.	ns, security agents or trustees	
Name	HSBC CORPORATE TRUSTEE COM	PANY (UK) LIMITED	
Name			
Name			
Name			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
	If there are more than four names, please surtick the statement below.	pply any four of these names then	
	I confirm that there are more than four trustees entitled to the charge.	persons, security agents or	

•		
	MRO1 Particulars of a charge	
4	Brief description	
	Please give a short description of any land, ship, aircraft or intellectual property registered or required to be registered in the UK subject to a charge (which is not a floating charge) or fixed security included in the instrument.	Please submit only a short description If there are a number of plots of land, aircraft and/or ships, you should simply describe some
Brief description	Leasehold property known as John Bell House, 1A College Square East, Belfast with Folio AN227876L County Antrim which has been ascribed by Land Registry pursuant to dealing number 2016/850266. For more details please refer to Schedule 2 of the instrument.	of them in the text field and add a statement along the lines of, "for more details please refer to the instrument". Please limit the description to the available space.
5	Other charge or fixed security	
	Does the instrument include a charge (which is not a floating charge) or fixed security over any tangible or intangible or (in Scotland) corporeal or incorporeal property not described above? Please tick the appropriate box.	
	✓ Yes □ No	
6	Floating charge	
	Is the instrument expressed to contain a floating charge? Please tick the appropriate box. Yes Continue	
	✓ Yes Continue No Go to Section 7	
	Is the floating charge expressed to cover all the property and undertaking of the company?	
	☐ Yes	
7	Negative Pledge	
	Do any of the terms of the charge prohibit or restrict the company from creating further security that will rank equally with or ahead of the charge? Please tick the appropriate box.	
	✓ Yes □ No	
8	Trustee statement •	
	You may tick the box if the company named in Section 1 is acting as trustee of the property or undertaking which is the subject of the charge.	◆This statement may be filed after the registration of the charge (use form MR06).
9	Signature	
	Please sign the form here.	
Signature	X Ables & Overy LLP X or behalf of the Connor Becurity Agent	
	This form must be signed by a person with an interest in the charge.	

Presenter information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if you do, it will help Companies House if there is a query on the form. The contact information you give will be visible to searchers of the public record.

Contact name	DAISY LITTLE
Company name	ALLEN & OVERY LLP
Address	ONE BISHOPS SQUARE
Post town	LONDON
County/Region	
Postcode	E 1 6 A D
Country	
DX	
Telephone	+44 20 3088 0000

Certificate

We will send your certificate to the presenter's address if given above or to the company's Registered Office if you have left the presenter's information blank.

Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or with information missing.

Please make sure you have remembered the following:

- ☐ The company name and number match the information held on the public Register.
- You have included a certified copy of the instrument with this form.
- ☐ You have entered the date on which the charge was created.
- ☐ You have shown the names of persons entitled to the charge.
- ☐ You have ticked any appropriate boxes in Sections 3, 5, 6, 7 & 8.
- ☐ You have given a description in Section 4, if appropriate.
- You have signed the form.
- You have enclosed the correct fee.
- Please do not send the original instrument; it must be a certified copy.

Important information

Please note that all information on this form will appear on the public record.

How to pay

A fee of £23 is payable to Companies House in respect of each mortgage or charge filed on paper.

Make cheques or postal orders payable to 'Companies House.'

Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House address. However, for expediency, we advise you to return it to the appropriate address below:

For companies registered in England and Wales: The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ. DX 33050 Cardiff.

For companies registered in Scotland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2, 139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF. DX ED235 Edinburgh 1 or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post).

For companies registered in Northern Ireland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG. DX 481 N.R. Belfast 1.

Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an alternative format. Please visit the forms page on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse





CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 10286425

Charge code: 1028 6425 0006

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 1st February 2018 and created by CURLEW THIRD LETTING GP2 LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 9th February 2018.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 13th February 2018





A&L Goodbody

Execution Version

Dated

1 february 2018

The Companies Listed in Schedule 1 as Chargors

HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited as Common Security Agent

COMMON SECURITY AGREEMENT

Allen & Overy I.LP

Except for material regarded pursuant to

Except for material regarded Act 2006

Except for material regarded Act 2009

Secretify that this is a correct copy

The original document

One Ridops

Topic

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	Interpretation	3
2	Creation of security	6
3	Restrictions on dealing	11
4	Land	11
5	Investments	13
6	Accounts	15
7	Relevant Contracts	16
8	Criminal Damage Claims	17
9	When security becomes enforceable	. 17
10	Enforcement of security	.18
11	Receiver	. 19
12	Powers of Receiver	. 20
13	Application of proceeds	.22
14	Delegation	. 22
15	Further assurances	. 22
16	Power of attorney	. 23
17	Miscellaneous	.23
18	Release	.24
19	Governing law	.24
20	Common Security Agent Provisions	. 24
Sched	ule 1 Chargors	. 25
Sched	ule 2 Real Property	.26
Sched	ule 3 Shares	.27
Sched	ule 4 Forms of Letter for Headlessor	. 28
	Part 1 Notice to Headlessor	.28
	Part 2 Acknowledgement of Headlessor	.29
Sched	ule 5 Forms of Letter for Lease Documents	.30
	Part 1 Notice to Lease Counterparty	.30
	Part 2 Acknowledgement of Lease Counterparty	.31
Sched	ule 6 Forms of Letter for Account Bank	. 32
	Part 1 Notice to Account Bank	.32
	Part 2 Acknowledgement of Account Bank	. 34
Sched	ule 7 Forms of Letter for Relevant Contracts	. 36
	Part 1 Notice to Counterparty	. 36
	Part 2 Acknowledgement of Counterparty	. 38

1

Schedule 8 Forms of Letter for insurer	3
Part 1 Notice to Insurer	3
Part 2 Acknowledgement of Insurer	4
Schedule 9 Signatories	4

LAND REGISTRY

FOLIOS:

Folios AN209298, AN186222 both County Antrim

REGISTERED OWNERS: Curlew Third Property LP (acting by its General Partners Curlew Third Property GP1 Limited and Curlew Third Property GP2 Limited)

Folio AN227876L, County Antrim

REGISTERED OWNERS: Curlew Third Letting LP (acting by its General Partners Curlew Third Letting GP1 Limited and Curlew Third Letting GP2 Limited)

THIS DEED is dated | February 2018 and is made

BETWEEN:

- (1) THE COMPANIES tisted in Schedule 1 (each a Chargor); and
- (2) HSBC CORPORATE TRUSTEE COMPANY (UK) LIMITED (the Common Security Agent) as Common Security Agent and trustee for the Secured Parties (as defined in the Intercreditor Agreement defined below).

BACKGROUND:

- (A) Each Chargor enters into this Deed in connection with the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined below).
- (B) It is intended that this document takes effect as a deed notwithstanding the fact that a party may only execute this document under hand.

IT IS AGREED as follows:

- 1 INTERPRETATION
- 1.1 Definitions

In this Deed:

The terms Acquisition Document, Asset Management Agreement, Authorisation, General Partner, Development Document, English Limited Partnership, English Limited Partnership Agreement, FM/Letting Agreement, GPUT, Headlease, Lease Document, Nomination Agreement, Rental Income and Shareholder Loan have the meaning given to those terms in the Senior Facilities Agreement.

1911 Act means the Conveyancing and Law of Property Act 1911.

Act means the Conveyancing and Law of Property Act 1881.

Criminal Damage Claim means a claim made by or on behalf of a Chargor under the Criminal Damage Order in relation to damage caused to the Security Assets located in Northern Ireland after the date hereof.

Criminal Damage Order means the Criminal Damage (Compensation) (Northern Ireland) Order 1977 as amended by the Criminal Damage (Compensation) (Amendment) (Northern Ireland) Order 2009 (or any

statutory successor scheme for the compensation of criminal damage to property for the time being in force).

Declared Default means:

- (a) prior to the Senior Discharge Date, a Senior Declared Default; and
- (b) on or after the Senior Discharge Date, a Mezzanine Declared Default.

GP Chargor means each Chargor that is a General Partner.

Intercreditor Agreement means the intercreditor agreement dated 31 January 2018 between, amongst others, the Chargors, the Secured Parties and the Common Security Agent.

Limited Partnership Interest means each GP Chargor's rights, title and interests (whether as a general partner or otherwise) in each English Limited Partnership or held by any nominee or trustee on its behalf (including, without limitation, any rights, title and interests arising under the relevant English Limited Partnership Agreement, the Limited Partnership Act 1907 (or other law or regulation relating to limited partnerships) or otherwise) and including, without limitation, in each case any interest in the capital of, any right to receive the profits of, and any right to receive any distribution in respect of such rights, title and interest.

Mezzanine Facility Agreement means the mezzanine facility agreement dated 3.1 January 2018 between, amongst others, Link Asset Services (UK) Limited and Enigma Mezz Borrower S.à r.ì..

Party means a party to this Deed.

Receiver means an administrative receiver, receiver and manager or a receiver, in each case, appointed under this Deed.

Relevant Contracts has the meaning given to it in clause 8.1 (Relevant Contracts).

Security Assets means all assets of each Chargor the subject of any security created by this Deed.

Secured Llabilities means all the Liabilities and all other present and future liabilities and obligations at any time due, owing or incurred by any Common Debtor to any Secured Party under the Debt Documents, both actual and contingent and whether incurred solely or jointly and as principal or surety or in any other capacity.

Security Period means the period beginning on the date of this Deed and ending on the date on which all the Secured Liabilities have been unconditionally and irrevocably paid and discharged in full.

Senior Facilities Agreement means the senior facilities agreement dated 31 January 2018 between, amongst others, each Chargor and the Common Security Agent.

1.2 Construction

- 1.2.1 Capitalised terms defined in the Intercreditor Agreement have, unless expressly defined in this Deed, the same meaning in this Deed.
- 1.2.2 The provisions of clauses 1.2 (Construction), 1.4 (Luxembourg terms), 1.5 (Guernsey provisions), 1.6 (Limited recourse), 1.7 (Unit Trust Trustee references) of the Senior Facilities Agreement apply to this Deed as though they were set out in full in this Deed except that references to the Intercreditor Agreement will be construed as references to this Deed.

- (a) A Debt Document or other agreement or instrument includes (without prejudice to any prohibition on amendments) any amendment to that Debt Document or other agreement or instrument, including any change in the purpose of, any extension of or any increase in the amount of a facility or any additional facility;
- (b) the term this Security means any security created by this Deed; and
- (c) a reference to any asset includes present and future properties, revenues and rights of every description.
- 1.2.4 Any covenant of a Chargor under this Deed (other than a payment obligation) remains in force during the Security Period.
- 1.2.5 If the Common Security Agent considers that an amount paid to a Secured Party under any Debt Document is capable of being avoided or otherwise set aside on the liquidation or administration of the payer or otherwise, then that amount will not be considered to have been irrevocably paid for the purposes of this Deed.
- 1.2.6 Unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to a Security Asset includes the proceeds of sale of that Security Asset.
- 1.2.7 Unless the context otherwise requires, any share, Limited Partnership Interest, stock, depenture, bond or other security or investment includes:
 - (a) any dividend, interest or other distribution paid or payable:
 - (b) any right, money or property accruing or offered at any time by way of redemption, substitution, exchange, bonus or preference, under option rights or otherwise,

in each case in respect of that share, Limited Partnership Interest, stock, debenture, bond or other security or investment;

1.3 Third party rights

- 1.3.1 Unless expressly provided to the contrary in this Deed, a person who is not a Party has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 (the Third Parties Act) to enforce or to enjoy the benefit of any term of this Deed.
- 1.3.2 Notwithstanding any term of this Deed the consent of any person who is not a Party is not required to rescind or vary this Deed at any time.
- 1.3.3 Any Receiver or Delegate may, subject to this clause 1.3 and the Third Parties Act, rely on any clause of this Deed which expressly confers rights on it.

1.4 Guernsey Provisions

Each of Curlew Third Property GP1 Limited, Curlew Third Property GP2 Limited and Curlew Third Property Limited Partnership, acting by its general partners, Curlew Third Property GP1 Limited and Curlew Third Property GP2 Limited shall waive any and all of their rights under the existing or future laws of Guernsey, whether by virtue of the *droit de division* or otherwise, to require that any liability under or in connection with any Finance Document be divided or apportioned with any other person or reduced in any manner whatsoever, and whether by virtue of the *droit de discussion* or otherwise, to require that recourse be had to the assets of any other person before any claim is enforced against it.

2 Confirmation of Authority

2.1 Confirmation

- 2.1.1 Each Chargor, to the extent its consent is required under any document (to which it is a party or otherwise) or in any circumstance, irrevocably and unconditionally consents to and approves:
 - (a) the creation of this Security (by itself and each other Chargor); and
 - (b) the enforcement, on the terms of this Deed, of all or any of this Security (against itself or any other Chargor) by the Common Security Agent or its nominee or a Receiver by any permitted means including, without limitation, any sale, transfer, assignment, disposal or possession of any Security Asset to any person. This includes, where applicable in respect of a Limited Partnership Interest the admission of new members or partners arising out of or in connection with that enforcement, sale, transfer, assignment, disposal or possession. In addition it agrees to use all reasonable endeavours (and to take (and refrain from taking) such steps as are requested by the Common Security Agent, any Receiver or any transferee) to procure that the Common Security Agent, any Receiver and any transferee following enforcement benefits from such rights as the Chargor benefited from in relation to the Limited Partnership Interest (in each case to the extent requested by the Common Security Agent, any Receiver or that transferee).
- 2.1.2 Each Chargor, to the extent its consent is required under any document or in any circumstance, confirms to the Common Security Agent that:
 - (a) each nominee or trustee (a Relevant Nominee) holding Security Assets on its behalf has been irrevocably and unconditionally authorised and directed to enter into this Deed as a Chargor in respect of the assets held by it as nominee or trustee;
 - (b) each Relevant Nominee is authorised to give good receipt for any monies paid in accordance with the Security Documents executed by it; and
 - (c) each Relevant Nominee has been authorised to execute each Transaction Document and Debt Document to which it is a party.

3 CREATION OF SECURITY

3.1 General

- 3.1.1 All the security created under this Deed:
 - (a) is created in favour of the Common Security Agent;
 - (b) is created over present and future assets of each Chargor;
 - (c) is security for the payment and satisfaction of all the Secured Liabilities; and
 - (d) is made as legal and beneficial owner.

3.1.2

- (a) If the rights of a Chargor under any document to which it is a party (the Documents) cannot be secured without the consent of the counterparty to the Document and/or satisfaction of specific conditions:
 - the Chargor must notify the Common Security Agent promptly upon becoming aware of the requirement for any such consent and/or satisfaction of any such condition;

- (ii) this Security will constitute security over all proceeds and other amounts which the Chargor may receive, or has received, under the relevant Document but will exclude the Chargor's other rights under that Document; and
- (iii) unless the Common Security Agent otherwise requires, that Chargor must use its reasonable endeavours to obtain the required consent and/or satisfy the relevant condition.
- (b) If the Chargor obtains the required consent or satisfies the relevant condition:
 - (i) the Chargor must notify the Common Security Agent promptly;
 - (ii) all of the Chargor's rights under that Document will immediately be secured in accordance with clause 3.7 (Other contracts); and
 - (iii) clause 8 (Relevant Contracts) will apply to that Document.
- 3.1.3 The Common Security Agent holds the benefit of this Deed on trust for the Secured Parties.

3.2 Land

- 3.2.1 Each Chargor, as legal and beneficial owner to the intent that the charges contained in this Deed will be a continuing security for the payment and discharge of the Secured Obligations in favour of the Common Security Agent (as trustee agent for itself and the other Secured Parties, hereby):
 - (a) GRANTS, CONVEYS AND TRANSFERS unto the Common Security Agent on the terms set out in this Deed, to the extent that title to any real property is of freehold tenure and not subject to registration in the Land Registry of Northern Ireland pursuant to the Land Registration Act (Northern Ireland) 1970, ALL THAT AND THOSE its real property (excluding any such property located in Scotland or England and Wales) including, without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the real property (if any), particulars of which are specified in Schedule 2 (Real Property) TO HOLD the same unto the Common Security Agent in fee simple subject to the proviso for redemption contained in this Deed;
 - (b) DEMISES unto the Common Security Agent on the terms set out in this Deed, to the extent that title to its real property is of leasehold tenure and not subject to registration in the Land Registry of Northern Ireland pursuant to the Land Registration Act (Northern Ireland) 1970, ALL THAT AND THOSE its real property (excluding any such property located in Scotland or England and Wales) including, without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the real property (if any), specified in Schedule 2 (Real Property) TO HOLD the same unto the Common Security Agent for the residues of the respective terms of years for which it now holds the same less the last three days thereof of each such term subject to the proviso for redemption contained in this Deed;
 - (c) As registered owner or as the person entitled to be registered as owner HEREBY CHARGES all its real property (excluding any such property located in Scotland or England and Wales) including, without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the real property (if any), specified in Schedule 2 (Real Property) the ownership of which is registered in the Land Registry of Northern Ireland or is required to be so registered pursuant to the Land Registration (Northern Ireland) Act 1970 and HEREBY ASSENTS to the registration of the charge as a burden on the said real property;

- (d) CHARGES as a first fixed charge all future freehold and leasehold property of the Chargor (whether or not registered) (excluding any such property located in Scotland or England and Wales);
- 3.2.2 A reference in this clause to a mortgage or charge of any freehold or leasehold property includes:
 - (a) all buildings, fixtures, fittings and fixed plant and machinery on that property; and
 - (b) the benefit of any covenants for title given or entered into by any predecessor in title of a Chargor in respect of that property or any moneys paid or payable in respect of those covenants.

3.3 Attorns Tenant

3.3.1 Each Chargor hereby attorns tenant to the Common Security Agent of any part of the Secured Assets mortgaged or charged by clause 3.2 at the yearly rent of £1 (if demanded) provided always that the Common Security Agent may at any time without notice to the Chargor determine the tenancy hereby created and enter upon such Secured Assets but so that neither the receipt of the said rent nor the said tenancy shall render the Common Security Agent liable to account to any person as mortgagee in possession.

3.4 Investments

- 3.4.1 Each Chargor charges by way of a first fixed charge the shares listed in Schedule 3 (Shares) and its interest in all other present and future shares, stocks, debentures, bonds or other securities and investments owned by it or held by any nominee on its behalf.
- 3.4.2 A reference in this clause to a mortgage or charge of any stock, share, debenture, bond or other security includes:
 - (a) any dividend or interest paid or payable in relation to it; and
 - (b) any right, money or property accruing or offered at any time in relation to it by way of redemption, substitution, exchange, bonus or preference, under option rights or otherwise.
- 3.4.3 The first fixed charges created by paragraph 3.4.1 above shall not apply in respect of, or in relation to:
 - (a) any shares, stocks, debentures, bonds or other securities and investments owned by a Chargor or held by any nominee on its behalf, in any company which is incorporated in Luxembourg and rights relating thereto, which are the subject of an effective Luxembourg law pledge (gage) created by a Security Document governed by Luxembourg law; or
 - (b) any shares, stocks, debentures, bonds or other securities and investments owned by a Chargor or held by any nominee on its behalf, in any company which is incorporated in Guernsey and rights relating thereto, which are the subject of an effective Guernsey law security interest created by a Security Document governed by Guernsey law.

3.5 Book debts etc.

Each Chargor charges by way of a first fixed charge:

- 3.5.1 all of its book and other debts;
- 3.5.2 all other moneys due and owing to it; and

3.5.3 the benefit of all rights, securities or guarantees of any nature enjoyed or held by it in relation to any item under paragraph 3.5.1 or 3.5.2 above,

to the extent governed by the laws of Northern Ireland.

3.6 Restricted credit balances

Each Chargor charges by way of a first fixed charge all of its rights in respect of any amount standing to the credit of any account (including any account contemplated by the Senior Facilities Agreement or this Deed) it has with any person and the debt represented by it provided that such account is maintained in Northern Ireland.

3.7 Plant and machinery

Each Chargor charges by way of a first fixed charge all plant and machinery owned by that Chargor and its interest in any plant or machinery in its possession, other than where that would require labelling, segregation or period listing or specification of such parts, stock, moveable plant, equipment or receivables.

3.8 Insurances

Each Chargor assigns by way of security, subject to a proviso for re-assignment on redemption:

- 3.8.1 all of its rights under any contract of insurance taken out by it or on its behalf or in which it has an interest; and
- 3.8.2 all moneys payable and all monies paid to it under or in respect of all such contracts of insurance; and
- 3.8.3 all of its present and future rights title and interest in and to any Criminal Damage Claim and the proceeds thereof.

3.9 Other contracts

- 3.9.1 Each Chargor assigns by way of security, subject to a proviso for re-assignment on redemption, all of its rights:
 - (a) in respect of all Rental Income;
 - (b) under each Lease Document;
 - (c) under each Asset Management Agreement;
 - (d) under each FM/Letting Agreement;
 - (e) in respect of all Shareholder Loans or other intra-group loans made to an Obligor by another Obligor; and
 - (f) under any other agreement to which it is a party (including Shareholder Loans or other intragroup loans made to an Obligor by another Obligor) except to the extent that it is subject to any fixed security created under any other term of this clause 3.
- 3.9.2 Each Chargor charges by way of a first fixed charge all of its rights:
 - (a) under each Development Document;

- (b) under each Nomination Agreement; and
- (c) under each Acquisition Document.

3.10 Intellectual property

Each Chargor charges by way of a first fixed charge all of its rights in respect of any Intellectual Property.

3.11 Limited Partnership Interests

- 3.11.1 Each GP Chargor charges by way of a first fixed charge all of its Limited Partnership Interests.
- 3.11.2 Other than any assets effectively charged in paragraph 3.11.1 above, each GP Chargor assigns and agrees to assign by way of security all of its Limited Partnership Interests, including all moneys which at any time may be or become payable to that GP Chargor, and the proceeds of any claims, awards and judgments which may at any time be receivable or received by that GP Chargor.
- 3.11.3 No part of any Limited Partnership Interest shall be charged or assigned pursuant to this clause to the extent it would result in the Common Security Agent or any other person (except a GP Chargor) being required to be registered as a general partner of the relevant Limited Partnership until the later of the occurrence of a Declared Default and the Common Security Agent giving notice to the Borrower that this paragraph 3.11.3 shall cease to apply.

3.12 Miscellaneous

Each Chargor charges by way of first floating charge:

- 3.12.1 any beneficial interest, claim or entitlement it has in any pension fund;
- 3.12.2 its goodwill;
- 3.12.3 the benefit of any Authorisation (statutory or otherwise) held in connection with its use of any Security Asset;
- 3.12.4 the right to recover and receive compensation which may be payable to it in respect of any Authorisation referred to in paragraph 3.12.3 above; and
- 3.12.5 its uncalled capital,

3.13 Floating charge

- 3.13.1 Each Chargor charges by way of a first floating charge all its assets (including, without limitation, its heritable and moveable property and other property, assets and rights in Scotland or governed by the laws of Scotland) other than any asset which is situated in Northern Ireland or governed by the laws of Northern Ireland which is otherwise effectively mortgaged, charged or assigned by way of fixed mortgage, charge or assignment under this clause 3.
- 3.13.2 Except as provided below, the Common Security Agent may by notice to a Chargor convert the floating charge created by this clause into a fixed charge as regards any of that Chargor's assets specified in that notice, if there is a Declared Default.
- 3.13.3 The floating charge created by this clause may not be converted into a fixed charge solely by reason of:
 - (a) the obtaining of a moratorium; or

(b) anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium,

under article 14A of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989.

- 3.13.4 The floating charge created by this clause will automatically convert into a fixed charge over all of any Chargors' assets if an administrator is appointed or the Common Security Agent receives notice of an intention to appoint an administrator.
- 3.13.5 The floating charge created by this clause is a qualifying floating charge for the purpose of paragraph 15 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989.
- 3.13.6 The floating charge created pursuant to this clause may not be converted into a fixed charge in respect of any property or assets situated in Scotland or England if, and to the extent that, a Receiver would not be capable of exercising his powers in Scotland or England pursuant to section 72 of the Insolvency Act 1986 by reason of such automatic conversion.

3.14 Excluded assets

Unless otherwise expressly stated in writing between the relevant Chargor and the Common Security Agent after the date on which it becomes a party to the Senior Facilities Agreement, there shall be excluded from the Security created by clauses 3.7 (Plant and machinery) to 3.13 (Floating charge) (excluding clause 3.9.1(e) to 3.9.1(f) to the extent it relates to Shareholder Loans or other intra-group loans made to an Obligor by another Obligor) from the other provisions of this Deed and from the operation of any further assurance provisions contained in the Security Documents governed by the laws of Northern Ireland:-

- 3.14.1 any asset or undertaking situated outside England and Wales, Northern Ireland or Scotland; or
- 3.14.2 any interest of any GPUT in any Guernsey Limited Partnership.

4 RESTRICTIONS ON DEALING

4.1 Security

Except as expressly permitted under the Senior Facilities Agreement, the Mezzanine Facility Agreement or this Deed, no Chargor may create or permit to subsist any Security on any Security Asset (except for this Security).

4.2 Disposals

Except as expressly permitted under the Senior Facilities Agreement, the Mezzanine Facility Agreement or this Deed, no Chargor may sell, transfer, licence, lease or otherwise dispose of any Security Asset, except for the disposal in the ordinary course of trading of any Security Asset subject only to the floating charge created under this Deed.

5 LAND

5.1 General

In this clause:

Fixtures means all fixtures and fittings and fixed plant and machinery on the Mortgaged Property.

Insured Property Assets means the Premises and all of each Chargor's other assets of an insurable nature in the Premises.

Mortgaged Property means all freehold or leasehold property included in the definition of Security Assets.

Premises means all buildings and erections included in the definition of Security Assets.

5.2 Notice in respect of Headlease

- 5.2.1 Subject to paragraph 5.2.1(b) below, each Chargor must, in respect of each Headlease relating to the Mortgaged Property:
 - (a) promptly serve a notice of charge, substantially in the form of Schedule 4Part 1 (Forms of Letter for Headlessor), on each lessor under a Headlesse; and
 - (b) use reasonable endeavours to ensure that each such lessor acknowledges the notice, substantially in the form of Schedule 4Part 2 (Forms of Letter for Headlessor), which in this sub-clause (b) only shall mean where no acknowledgment has been received sending one additional request for acknowledgment by either email or post.
- 5.2.2 Notwithstanding paragraph 5.2.1 above, any person that is a lessor under a Headlease on whom notice would be required to be served under paragraph 5.2.1 above but is also party to this Deed, acknowledges that by its entry into this Deed it has received notice of and accepts the Security in respect of each applicable Headlease to which it is a party.

5.3 Notice in respect of Lease Documents

- 5.3.1 Subject to paragraph 5.3.2 below, each Chargor must, in respect of each Lease Document (including any Intra-Group Leases (that are not Scottish law governed or English law governed), but excluding any Student Leases or any other lease under which either no or nominal Rental Income is derived or any Scottish law governed Lease Document or any English law governed Lease Document:
 - (a) promptly serve a notice of charge, substantially in the form of Schedule 5Part 1 (Forms of Letter for Lease Documents) on each party to the relevant Lease Document; and
 - (b) use reasonable endeavours to ensure that each such party acknowledges the notice, substantially in the form of Schedule 5Part 2 (Forms of Letter for Lease Documents), which in this sub-clause (b) only shall mean where no acknowledgment has been received sending one additional request for acknowledgment by either email or post.
- 5.3.2 Notwithstanding paragraph 5.3.1 above, any person that is a party to a Lease Document (including any Intra-Group Lease but excluding any Lease Document governed by Scottish law or English law) on whom notice would be required to be served under paragraph 5.3.1 above but is also party to this Deed, acknowledges that by its entry into this Deed it has received notice of and accepts the Security in respect of each applicable Lease Document to which it is a party.

5.4 Acquisitions

If any Chargor acquires any freehold or leasehold property after the date of this Deed it must:

- 5.4.1 as soon as reasonably practicable notify the Common Security Agent;
- 5.4.2 promptly on request by the Common Security Agent and at the cost of that Chargor, execute and deliver to the Common Security Agent a legal mortgage in favour of the Common Security Agent of that property in any form which the Common Security Agent may require;
- 5.4.3 if the title to that freehold or leasehold property is registered at the Land Registry of Northern Ireland or required to be so registered, promptly, notify the Common Security Agent in writing of

the folio number(s) of the property and, at the time it applies to the Land Registry of Northern Ireland to be registered as the registered owner of the property, apply to the Land Registry of Northern Ireland to register a new mortgage or supplemental mortgage as a burden on the folio number(s) of the property; and

5.4.4 if the title to that freehold or leasehold property is unregistered, promptly, register the assurance to the Chargor in the Registry of Deeds of Northern Ireland in accordance with the Registration (Lands and Deeds) Order (Northern Ireland) 1992 and immediately upon completion of registration in the Registry of Deeds, submit an application for first registration to the Land Registry of Northern Ireland ensuring the Chargor is registered as registered owner of the folio number(s) and the new mortgage or supplemental mortgage is registered as a burden on the folio number(s).

5.5 Land Registry

Each Chargor consents to an inhibition in the following terms being entered into on the Folio relating to any Mortgaged Property registered at the Land Registry of Northern Ireland:

"No disposition of the registered estate by the registered owner of the registered estate is to be registered without a written consent signed by the registered owner for the time being of the charge dated [] in favour of [] referred to Part III of the Folio by their solicitor."

5.6 Deposit of title deeds

Each Chargor must deposit with the Common Security Agent all deeds and documents of title relating to the Mortgaged Property and similar documents received by or on behalf of a Chargor (provided that, if any Headlease cannot be located or is not otherwise within the possession or control of a Chargor, such Headlease shall be excluded from the operation of this clause) or alternatively an acceptable undertaking from the Chargors' solicitor must be given to hold the same to the Common Security Agent's order.

5.7 Excluded notices

For the avoidance of doubt, no notice of security shall be served on tenants or occupiers of residential premises forming part of the Mortgaged Property or on any third party tenant of non-residential premises.

5.8 Leasehold Lands

Each Chargor HEREBY DECLARES that in respect of all or any leasehold lands, hereditaments and premises referred to in clause 3.2 (Land) they will stand possessed of the reversion or respective reversions hereby reserved of the term or several terms of years for which the same are held IN TRUST for the Common Security Agent (subject to any equity of redemption subsisting under this Deed) and will dispose of the same as the Common Security Agent may direct and HEREBY AUTHORISES the Common Security Agent to appoint a new trustee or trustees of such reversion or respective reversions in place of the Chargor or any trustee or trustees appointed under this power as if it, he, she or they were incapable of acting in the trusts hereby declared and each Chargor HEREBY IRREVOCABLY APPOINTS the Common Security Agent the attorney of the Chargor to assign the said reversion or respective reversions in the name of the Chargor and on its behalf to the Common Security Agent or as it may direct subject to such equity of redemption (if any), as may for the time being be subsisting and to execute and do all deeds, documents and acts necessary or proper for that purpose.

6 INVESTMENTS

6.1 General

In this clause:

Investments means:

- all shares in any member of the Group (other than itself) owned by a Chargor or held by any nominee or trustee on its behalf including the shares listed in Schedule 3 (Shares);
- (b) the Limited Partnership Interests; and
- (c) all other shares, stocks, debentures, bonds or other securities or investments owned by a Chargor or held by any nominee or trustee on its behalf.

6.2 Investments

Each Chargor represents to each Secured Party that:

- 6.2.1 the investments are fully paid; and
- 6.2.2 it is the sole legal and beneficial owner of each of its Investments.

6.3 Deposit

Each Chargor must:

- 6.3.1 as soon as reasonably practicable upon request from the Common Security Agent deposit with the Common Security Agent, or as the Common Security Agent may direct, all certificates and other documents of title or evidence of ownership in relation to any Investment; and
- 6.3.2 as soon as reasonably practicable upon request from the Common Security Agent execute and deliver to the Common Security Agent all share transfers and other documents which may be reasonably be required by the Common Security Agent in order to enable the Common Security Agent or its nominees to be registered as the owner of or otherwise obtain a legal title to its Investments.

6.4 Calls

- 6.4.1 Each Chargor must pay all calls or other payments due and payable in respect of any Investment.
- 6.4.2 If any Chargor fails to do so, the Common Security Agent may pay the calls or other payments in respect of any Investment on behalf of that Chargor. Each Chargor must promptly on request reimburse the Common Security Agent for any payment made by the Common Security Agent under this clause.

6.5 Other obligations in respect of Investments

The Common Security Agent is not obliged to:

- 6.5.1 perform any obligation of any Chargor;
- 6.5.2 make any payment;
- 6.5.3 make any enquiry as to the nature or sufficiency of any payment received by it or any Chargor; or
- 6.5.4 present or file any claim or take any other action to collect or enforce the payment of any amount to which it may be entitled under this Deed,

in respect of any Investment.

6.6 Voting rights

- 6.6.1 Each Chargor shall be entitled to exercise or direct the exercise of the voting and other rights attached to any Investments provided that any exercise of rights does not materially adversely affect the validity or enforceability of the Security over the Investments or cause an Event of Default to occur.
- 6.6.2 If, and at any time after, a Declared Default has occurred and the Common Security Agent has given notice to the relevant Chargor that it intends to exercise its rights under this clause 6.6.2:
 - (a) the Common Security Agent or a relevant Receiver shall be entitled to exercise (or refrain from exercising) or direct the exercise of the voting rights and other rights attached to any Investment owned by that Chargor;
 - (b) the relevant Chargor shall comply or procure the compliance with any directions of the Common Security Agent or a relevant Receiver in respect of the exercise of those rights and shall promptly execute and/or deliver to the Common Security Agent or the relevant Receiver such forms of proxy as it requires with a view to enabling such person as it selects to exercise those rights;
 - (c) the Common Security Agent may transfer the Investment owned by that Chargor into the name of the Common Security Agent or such nominee(s) of the Common Security Agent as it shall require.

7 ACCOUNTS

7.1 General

In this clause Account Bank means a person with whom a bank account is maintained by any Chargor in Northern Ireland.

7.2 Book debts and receipts

- 7.2.1 Each Chargor must get in and realise its material book and other debts and other moneys due and owing to it in the ordinary course of its business.
- 7.2.2 Each Chargor must, except to the extent that the Common Security Agent otherwise agrees, pay all the proceeds of the getting in and realisation into a bank account in the name of that Chargor in accordance with the Senior Facilities Agreement, and after the Senior Discharge Date, the Mezzanine Facility Agreement.

7.3 Notices of charge

Each Chargor must:

- 7.3.1 within 10 Business Days of the date of this Deed, serve a notice of assignment, substantially in the form of Schedule 6Part 1 (Forms of Letter for Account Bank), on each Account Bank; and
- 7.3.2 use reasonable endeavours to ensure that each Account Bank acknowledges the notice, substantially in the form of Schedule 6Part 2 (Forms of Letter for Account Bank) within 10 Business Days of service of the notice of assignment, provided that if a Chargor has used reasonable endeavours but has not been able to obtain acknowledgement, its obligations to obtain acknowledgement shall cease on the expiry of such 10 Business Day period.

8 RELEVANT CONTRACTS

8.1 General

In this clause Relevant Contract means:

- 8.1.1 each Acquisition Document;
- 8.1.2 each Asset Management Agreement;
- 8.1.3 each FM/Letting Agreement;
- 8.1.4 each Development Document;
- 8.1.5 each contract of insurance charged in accordance with clause 3.8 (Insurances) above;
- 8.1.6 each Hedging Agreement; and
- 8.1.7 each Shareholder Loan or other intra-group loan made to an Obligor by another Obligor.

8.2 Notices of assignment or charge

- 8.2.1 Subject to paragraph 8.2.3 below, each Chargor must, at the request of the Common Security Agent:
 - (a) in relation to each Relevant Contract (other than each contract of insurance and each Shareholder Loan or other intra-group loan made to an Obligor by another Obligor, an Acquisition Document governed by Scottish law or English Law or a Development Document governed by Scottish law or English law), within 10 Business Days of the date of this Deed (or, if that Relevant Contract is not entered into until after the date of this Deed, within 10 Business Days of the date of that Relevant Contract), serve a notice of assignment (or in the case of a Development Document or Acquisition Document, a notice of charge), substantially in the form of Schedule 7Part 1 (Forms of Letter for Relevant Contracts), on each counterparty to a Relevant Contract;
 - (b) use reasonable endeavours to ensure that each such party acknowledges that notice, substantially in the form of Schedule 7Part 2 (Forms of Letter for Relevant Contracts) within 10 Business Days of service of the notice of assignment, provided that if the relevant Chargor has used reasonable endeavours but has not been able to obtain acknowledgement, its obligation to obtain acknowledgement shall cease on the expiry of such 10 Business Day period;
 - (c) in relation to each contract of insurance, within 10 Business Days of the date of this Deed (or, if that Relevant Contract is not entered into until after the date of this Deed, within 10 Business Days of the date of that Relevant Contract), serve a notice of assignment, substantially in the form of Schedule 8 Part 1 (Forms of Letter for Insurer), on each counterparty to a contract of insurance; and
 - (d) use reasonable endeavours to ensure that each such party acknowledges that notice, substantially in the form of Schedule 8 Part 2 (Forms of Letter for Insurer) within 10 Business Days of service of the notice of assignment, provided that if the relevant Chargor has used reasonable endeavours but has not been able to obtain acknowledgement, its obligation to obtain acknowledgement shall cease on the expiry of such 10 Business Day period.
- 8.2.2 Following a Declared Default, each Chargor must:

- (a) in relation to each Shareholder Loan or other intra-group loan made to an Obligor by another Obligor, an Acquisition Document governed by Scottish law or English law or a Development Document governed by Scottish law or English law and each Nomination Agreement, as soon as possible and in any event no later than one Business Day following such Declared Default, serve a notice of assignment (or in the case of a Nomination Agreement other than an Excluded Nomination Agreement, a notice of charge) (substantially in the form of Schedule 6Part 1 (Forms of Letter for Relevant Contracts) on each counterparty to such Relevant Contract; and
- (b) use reasonable endeavours to ensure that each such party acknowledges that notice, substantially in the form of Schedule 7Part 2 (Forms of Letter for Relevant Contracts).
- 8.2.3 Notwithstanding paragraph 8.2.1 above, any person that is party to a Relevant Contract on whom notice would otherwise be required to be served under paragraph 8.2.1 above is also party to this Deed, acknowledges that by its entry into this Deed it has received notice of and accepts the Security in respect of each applicable Relevant Contract to which it is a party.

9 CRIMINAL DAMAGE CLAIMS

9.1 Each Chargor shall:

- 9.1.1 notify the Common Security Agent in writing as soon as practicable after becoming aware of any event or circumstance which will or is likely to give rise to a Criminal Damage Claim specifying in detail the nature of the event or circumstance which will or is likely to give rise to the claim and the extent of the damage to the Security Assets located in Northern Ireland;
- 9.1.2 institute a claim under the Criminal Damage Order and take all steps required to obtain payment of the maximum amount of compensation possible under the Criminal Damage Order;
- 9.1.3 apply all monies received pursuant to a Criminal Damage Claim in accordance with clause 8.3 (Disposal, Insurance, Acquisition and Listing Proceeds) of the Senior Facilities Agreement);
- 9.1.4 pay all monies received in relation to or arising out of any Criminal Damage Claim to the Common Security Agent (or if not paid directly to the Common Security Agent) hold or procure that such monies shall be held on trust for the Common Security Agent; and
- 9.1.5 should the Criminal Damage Order ever be repealed in Northern Ireland, ensure that the Real Property or any other freehold or leasehold property secured hereby located in Northern Ireland is properly insured with the appropriate terrorism insurance, but only to the extent that such insurance cover is commercially available without onerous terms (including, without limitation, the payment of any unreasonable premium) and that the insurance obligation validly falls to it, and notify the Common Security Agent immediately upon having put such insurance in place.

10 WHEN SECURITY BECOMES ENFORCEABLE

10.1 Declared Default

This Security will become immediately enforceable on the occurrence of a Declared Default.

10.2 Discretion

After this Security has become enforceable in accordance with clause 12.1 (Declared Default), the Common Security Agent may in its absolute discretion enforce all or any part of this Security in any manner it sees fit or as the Instructing Group direct.

10.3 Statutory powers

The power of sale and other powers conferred by section 19 of the Act and supplemented by section 4 of the 1911 Act, as amended by this Deed, will be immediately exercisable at any time after this Security has become enforceable.

11 ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY

11.1 General

- 11.1.1 For the purposes of all powers implied by statute, the Secured Liabilities are deemed to have become due and payable on the date of this Deed.
- 11.1.2 Section 20 of the Act (regulation of exercise of power of sale) and section 17 of the Act (restriction on consolidation of mortgage) do not apply to this Security.
- 11.1.3 The statutory powers of leasing conferred on the Common Security Agent are extended so as to authorise the Common Security Agent to lease, make agreements for leases, accept surrenders of leases and grant options as the Common Security Agent may think fit and without the need to comply with any provision of section 18 of the Act or section 3 of the 1911 Act.

11.2 No liability as mortgagee in possession

Neither the Common Security Agent nor any Receiver will be liable, by reason of entering into possession of a Security Asset, to account as mortgagee in possession or for any loss on realisation or for any default or omission for which a mortgagee in possession might be liable unless directly caused by its gross negligence, wilful misconduct or fraud.

11.3 Privileges

Each Receiver and the Common Security Agent is entitled to all the rights, powers, privileges and immunities conferred by the Act on mortgagees and receivers duly appointed under the Act, except that section 20 of the Act does not apply.

11.4 Protection of third parties

No person (including a purchaser) dealing with the Common Security Agent or a Receiver or its or his agents will be concerned to enquire:

- 11.4.1 whether the Secured Liabilities have become payable;
- 11.4.2 whether any power which the Common Security Agent or a Receiver is purporting to exercise has become exercisable or is being properly exercised;
- 11.4.3 whether any money remains due under the Debt Documents; or
- 11.4.4 how any money paid to the Common Security Agent or to that Receiver is to be applied.

11.5 Redemption of prior mortgages

- 11.5.1 At any time after this Security has become enforceable, the Common Security Agent may:
 - (a) redeem any prior Security against any Security Asset; and/or
 - (b) procure the transfer of that Security to itself; and/or

- (c) settle and pass the accounts of the prior mortgagee, chargee or encumbrancer; any accounts so settled and passed will be, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive and binding on each Chargor.
- 11.5.2 Each Chargor must pay to the Common Security Agent, promptly on demand, the costs and expenses incurred by the Common Security Agent in connection with any such redemption and/or transfer, including the payment of any principal or interest.

11.6 Contingencies

If this Security is enforced at a time when no amount is due under the Debt Documents but at a time when amounts may or will become due, the Common Security Agent (or the Receiver) may pay the proceeds of any recoveries effected by it into a suspense account or other account selected by it.

12 RECEIVER

12.1 Appointment of Receiver

- 12.1.1 Except as provided below, the Common Security Agent may appoint any one or more persons to be a Receiver of all or any part of the Security Assets if:
 - (a) this Security has become enforceable; or
 - (b) any Chargor so requests the Common Security Agent in writing at any time.
- 12.1.2 Any appointment under paragraph 12.1.1 above may be by deed, under seal or in writing under its hand.
- 12.1.3 Except as provided below, any restriction imposed by law on the right of a mortgagee to appoint a Receiver (including under section 24(1) of the Act) does not apply to this Deed.
- 12.1.4 The Common Security Agent is not entitled to appoint a Receiver solely as a result of the obtaining of a moratorium (or anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium) under article 14A of the insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989.
- 12.1.5 The Common Security Agent may not appoint an administrative receiver (as defined in article 5(1) of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989) over the Security Assets if the Common Security Agent is prohibited from so doing by article 59A of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989 and no exception to the prohibition on appointing an administrative receiver applies.

12.2 Removal

The Common Security Agent may by writing under its hand (subject to any requirement for an order of the court in the case of an administrative receiver) remove any Receiver appointed by it and may, whenever it thinks fit, appoint a new Receiver in the place of any Receiver whose appointment may for any reason have terminated.

12.3 Remuneration

The Common Security Agent may fix the remuneration of any Receiver appointed by it and the maximum rate specified in Section 24 of the Act will not apply.

12.4 Agent of the Chargors

12.4.1 A Receiver will be deemed to be the agent of each Chargor for all purposes and accordingly will be deemed to be in the same position as a Receiver duly appointed by a mortgagee under the

- Act. The Chargors alone are responsible for the contracts, engagements, acts, omissions, defaults and losses of a Receiver and for liabilities incurred by a Receiver.
- 12.4.2 No Secured Party will incur any liability (either to any Chargor or to any other person) by reason of the appointment of a Receiver or for any other reason.

12.5 Relationship with Common Security Agent

To the fullest extent allowed by law, any right, power or discretion conferred by this Deed (either expressly or impliedly) or by law on a Receiver may after this Security becomes enforceable be exercised by the Common Security Agent in relation to any Security Asset without first appointing a Receiver and notwithstanding the appointment of a Receiver.

13 POWERS OF RECEIVER

13.1 General

- 13.1.1 A Receiver has all of the rights, powers and discretions set out below in this clause in addition to those conferred on it by any law, this includes:
 - (a) in the case of an administrative receiver, all the rights powers and discretions conferred on an administrative receiver under the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989; and
 - (b) otherwise, all the rights, powers and discretions conferred on a receiver (or a receiver and manager) under the Act, the 1911 Act and the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989.
- 13.1.2 If there is more than one Receiver holding office at the same time, each Receiver may (unless the document appointing him states otherwise) exercise all of the powers conferred on a Receiver under this Deed individually and to the exclusion of any other Receiver.

13.2 Possession

A Receiver may take immediate possession of, get in and collect any Security Asset.

13.3 Carry on business

A Receiver may carry on any business of any Chargor in any manner he thinks fit.

13.4 Employees

- 13.4.1 A Receiver may appoint and discharge managers, officers, agents, accountants, servants, workmen and others for the purposes of this Deed upon such terms as to remuneration or otherwise as he thinks fit.
- 13.4.2 A Receiver may discharge any person appointed by any Chargor.

13.5 Borrow money

A Receiver may raise and borrow money either unsecured or on the security of any Security Asset either in priority to this Security or otherwise and generally on any terms and for whatever purpose which he thinks fit.

13.6 Sale of assets

13.6.1 A Receiver may sell, exchange, convert into money and realise any Security Asset by public auction or private contract and generally in any manner and on any terms which he thinks fit.

- 13.6.2 The consideration for any such transaction may consist of cash, debentures or other obligations, shares, stock or other valuable consideration and any such consideration may be payable in a lump sum or by instalments spread over any period which he thinks fit.
- 13.6.3 Fixtures, other than landlord's fixtures, may be severed and sold separately from the property containing them without the consent of any relevant Chargor.

13.7 Leases

A Receiver may let any Security Asset for any term and at any rent (with or without a premium) which he thinks fit and may accept a surrender of any lease or tenancy of any Security Asset on any terms which he thinks fit (including the payment of money to a lessee or tenant on a surrender).

13.8 Compromise

A Receiver may settle, adjust, refer to arbitration, compromise and arrange any claim, account, dispute, question or demand with or by any person who is or claims to be a creditor of any Chargor or relating in any way to any Security Asset.

13.9 Legal actions

A Receiver may bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon any action, suit or proceedings in relation to any Security Asset which he thinks fit.

13.10 Receipts

A Receiver may give a valid receipt for any moneys and execute any assurance or thing which may be proper or desirable for realising any Security Asset.

13.11 Subsidiaries

A Receiver may form a Subsidiary of any Chargor and transfer to that Subsidiary any Security Asset.

13.12 Delegation

A Receiver may delegate his powers in accordance with this Deed.

13.13 Lending

A Receiver may lend money or advance credit to any customer of any Chargor.

13.14 Protection of assets

A Receiver may:

- 13.14.1 effect any repair or insurance and do any other act which any Chargor might do in the ordinary conduct of its business to protect or improve any Security Asset;
- 13.14.2 commence and/or complete any building operation; and
- 13.14,3 apply for and maintain any planning permission, building regulation approval or any other Authorisation,

in each case as he thinks fit.

13.15 Other powers

A Receiver may:

- 13.15.1 do all other acts and things which he may consider desirable or necessary for realising any Security Asset or incidental or conducive to any of the rights, powers or discretions conferred on a Receiver under or by virtue of this Deed or law;
- 13.15.2 exercise in relation to any Security Asset all the powers, authorities and things which he would be capable of exercising if he were the absolute beneficial owner of that Security Asset; and
- 13.15.3 use the name of any Chargor for any of the above purposes.

14 APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

- 14.1.1 Any moneys received by the Common Security Agent or any Receiver after this Security has become enforceable must be applied in accordance with the Intercreditor Agreement.
- 14.1.2 Paragraph 14.1.1 above is subject to the payment of any claims having priority over this Security. This clause does not prejudice the right of any Secured Party to recover any shortfall from any Chargor.

15 **DELEGATION**

15.1 Power of Attorney

The Common Security Agent or any Receiver may delegate by power of attorney or in any other manner to any person any right, power or discretion exercisable by it under this Deed at any time after this Security has become enforceable (other than in respect of any action required to serve any notice, make any registration or otherwise act to perfect the Security, which may be taken at any time after this Deed has been entered into.

15.2 Terms

Any such delegation may be made upon any terms (including power to sub-delegate) which the Common Security Agent or any Receiver may think fit.

15.3 Liability

Neither the Common Security Agent nor any Receiver will be in any way liable or responsible to any Chargor for any loss or liability arising from any act, default, omission or misconduct on the part of any delegate or sub-delegate, unless directly caused by the gross negligence, wilful misconduct or fraud of the Common Security Agent or relevant Receiver.

16 FURTHER ASSURANCES

Each Chargor must, at its own expense, take whatever action the Common Security Agent or a Receiver may require for:

- 16.1.1 creating, perfecting or protecting any security inlended to be created by this Deed; or
- 16.1.2 facilitating the realisation of any Security Asset, or the exercise of any right, power or discretion exercisable, by the Common Security Agent or any Receiver or any of its delegates or subdelegates in respect of any Security Asset.

This includes:

- 16.1.3 the execution of any transfer, conveyance, assignment or assurance of any property, whether to the Common Security Agent or to its nominee; or
- 16.1.4 the giving of any notice, order or direction and the making of any registration,

which, in any such case, the Common Security Agent may think expedient.

17 POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each Chargor, by way of security, irrevocably and severally appoints the Common Security Agent, each Receiver and any of its delegates or sub-delegates to be its attorney to take, at any time after this Security has become enforceable, any action which any Chargor is obliged to take under this Deed (other than in respect of any action required to serve any notice, make any registration or otherwise act to perfect the Security, which may be taken at any time after this Deed has been entered into). Each Chargor ratifies and confirms whatever any attorney does or purports to do under its appointment under this clause.

18 MISCELLANEOUS

18.1 Covenant to pay

Subject to the limits on its liability in clauses 20.11 (Guarantee Limitations – Luxembourg Obligors) and 20.12 (Additional guarantee limitations) of the Senior Facilities Agreement and clauses 20.11 (Guarantee Limitations – Luxembourg Obligors) and 20.12 (Additional guarantee limitations) of the Mezzanine Facilities Agreement, each Chargor must pay or discharge the Secured Liabilities in the manner provided for in the Debt Documents.

18.2 Tacking

Each Senior Lender must perform its obligations under the Senior Facilities Agreement (including any obligation to make available further advances) before the Senior Discharge Date and each Mezzanine Lender must perform its obligations under the Mezzanine Facility Agreement before the Mezzanine Discharge Date (each including any obligation to make available further advances).

18.3 New Accounts

- 18.3.1 If any subsequent charge or other interest affects any Security Asset, a Secured Party may open a new account with any Chargor.
- 18.3.2 If that Secured Party does not open a new account, it will nevertheless be treated as if it had done so at the time when it received or was deemed to have received notice of that charge or other interest.
- 18.3.3 As from that time all payments made to that Secured Party will be credited or be treated as having been credited to the new account and will not operate to reduce any Secured Liability.

18.4 Time deposits

Without prejudice to any right of set-off any Secured Party may have under any other Debt Document or otherwise, if any time deposit matures on any account any Chargor has with any Secured Party within the Security Period when:

- 18.4.1 this Security has become enforceable; and
- 18.4.2 no Common Secured Liability is due and payable,

that time deposit will automatically be renewed for any further maturity which that Secured Party considers appropriate.

18.5 Notice of assignment

This Deed constitutes notice in writing to each Chargor of any charge or assignment of a debt owed by any Chargor to any other member of the Group and contained in any other Security Document.

19 RELEASE

At the end of the Security Period, the Secured Parties must, at the request and cost of the Chargors, promptly take whatever action is necessary to release the Security Assets from this Security.

20 GOVERNING LAW

This Deed and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by the laws of Northern Ireland.

21 COMMON SECURITY AGENT PROVISIONS

The Common Security Agent executes this Deed as common security agent in the exercise of the powers and authority conferred and vested in it under the Intercreditor Agreement and any other Debt Document for and on behalf of the Secured Parties for whom it acts. It will exercise its powers, rights, duties and authority under this Deed in the manner provided for in the Intercreditor Agreement and, in so acting, the Common Security Agent shall have the protections, immunities, rights, powers, authorisations, indemnities and benefits conferred on it under and by the Intercreditor Agreement and the other Debt Documents.

THIS DEED has been entered into as a deed on the date stated at the beginning of this Deed.

CHARGORS

(2) 中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国中国	edninsteut ynnipet (et. Seliseren ynnipet (et.	Regressed Miles	Just roletion (d)
Curlew Third Letting GP1 Limited	10286353	Brockbourne House, 77 Mount Ephraim, Tunbridge, Wells, Kent, TN4 8BS	England
Curlew Third Letting GP2 Limited	10286425	Brockbourne House, 77 Mount Ephraim, Tunbridge, Wells, Kent, TN4 8BS	England
Curlew Third Property GP1 Limited	59473	11 New Street, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 2PF	Guernsey
Curlew Third Property GP2 Limited	59474	11 New Street, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 2PF	Guernsey
Curlew Third Property Limited Partnership, acting by its general partners, the Curlew Third Property GP1 Limited and Curlew Third Property GP2 Limited	2220	11 New Street, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 2PF	Guernsey
Curlew Third Letting Limited Partnership, acting by its general partners, Curlew Third Letting GP1 Limited and Curlew Third Letting GP2 Limited	LP017524	Brockbourne House, 77 Mount Ephraim, Tunbridge, Wells, Kent, TN1 8BS	England

REAL PROPERTY

Variothic and	Title	Dografiplion.	Gharrier	Follo (Vumbar(3)
John Bell House	Freehold	Property known as John Bell House, 1A College Square East, Belfast	Curiew Third Property LP	Folios AN209298 and AN186222 both County Antrim.
John Bell House	Leasehold	Property known as John Bell House, 1A College Square East, Belfast held under lease dated 9 September 2016 made between (1) Curlew Third Property GP1 Limited and Curlew Third Property GP 2 Limited as General Partners for Curlew Third Property LP and (2) Curlew Third Letting GP1 Limited as General Partners for Curlew Third Letting GP 2 Limited as General Partners for Curlew Third Letting LP for a term of 25 years from and including 9 September 2016.	Curlew Third Letting LP acting by its general partners Curlew Third Letting GP1 Limited (incorporated in England with company registration number 10286353) and Curlew Third Letting GP2 Limited (incorporated in England with company registration number 10286425)	Folio AN227876L County Antrim which has been ascribed by Land Registry pursuant to dealing number 2016/850266

SHARES

<u>ितास्कर</u>	Sicuolisuer	(lumber/of/share)	0)ass

FORMS OF LETTER FOR HEADLESSOR

Part 1 Notice to Headlessor

IOu the	e letternead of the relevant Chargory
To:	[Headlessor]
	[Date]
Dear S	irs,
Re:	[PROJECT ENIGMA]
	on Security Agreement dated [] 2018 between [Chargor] BBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (the Common Security Agreement)
We refe	er to the lease dated [] and made between [] and [] (the Headlease).
legal m	ter constitutes notice to you that under the Common Security Agreement we have charged by way of first ortgage in favour of HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (as security trustee for the Secured as referred to in the Common Security Agreement, the Common Security Agent) all our interest in the ase.
	tructions in this letter apply until you receive notice from the Common Security Agent to the contrary and standing any previous instructions given by us.
	tructions in this letter may not be revoked or amended without the prior written consent of the Common Agent.
	ter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by the laws of n Ireland.
	confirm your agreement to the above by signing the attached acknowledgement and returning it to the n Security Agent at [ADDRESS] with a copy to ourselves.
Yours fa	aithfully,

Authori	sed Signatory)
CHARG	GOR]]

Part 2 [Acknowledgement of Headlessor

To:	[COMMON SECURITY AGENT]
Attention:	[ATTENTION]
	[Date]
Dear Sirs,	
Re: [PROJ	ECT ENIGMA]
	Common Security Agreement dated [] 2018 between [Chargor] and [AGENT] (the Common Security Agreement)
	ceipt from [Chargor] (the Chargor) of a notice dated [] 2018 (the Notice) in relation to the defined in the Notice).
We accept the	instructions contained in the Notice.
made or will be	t we have not received any notice that any third party has or will have any right or interest in, or has making any claim or demand or taking any action in respect of, the interest of the Chargor under or a Headlease (as defined in the Notice); and
This letter and Northern Irelan	any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by the laws of d.
Yours faithfully	
For	
ı n	

FORMS OF LETTER FOR LEASE DOCUMENTS

Part 1 Notice to Lease Counterparty

[On the letterhead of the relevant Chargor]

[То:	[Landlord]
	[Date]
Dear S	írs,
Re:	[PROJECT ENIGMA]
	on Security Agreement dated [
We refe	er to the lease dated [] and made between [] and [] (the Lease).
legal m	tter constitutes notice to you that under the Common Security Agreement we have charged by way of first tortgage in favour of HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (as security trustee for the Secured as referred to in the Common Security Agreement, the Common Security Agent) all our rights under the
	structions in this letter apply until you receive notice from the Common Security Agent to the contrary and standing any previous instructions given by us.
	structions in this letter may not be revoked or amended without the prior written consent of the Common Agent.
	ter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by the laws of n Ireland.
	confirm your agreement to the above by signing the attached acknowledgement and returning it to the in Security Agent at [ADDRESS] with a copy to ourselves.
Yours fa	aithfully,
(Authori	ised Signatory)
CHAR(GOR]]

Part 2 Acknowledgement of Lease Counterparty

[То:	[COMMON SECURITY AGENT]
Attention:	[ATTENTION]
	[Date]
Dear Sirs,	
Re: [PROJ	ECT ENIGMA]
	Common Security Agreement dated [] 2018 between [Chargor] and [AGENT] (the Common Security Agreement)
	reipt from [Chargor] (the Chargor) of a notice dated [
We accept the	instructions contained in the Notice.
made or will be	t we have not received any notice that any third party has or will have any right or interest in, or has making any claim or demand or taking any action in respect of, the rights of the Chargor under or Lease (as defined in the Notice); and
This letter and Northern Ireland	any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by the laws of d.
Yours faithfully,	
For	
[]]	

FORMS OF LETTER FOR ACCOUNT BANK

Part 1 Notice to Account Bank

[On the letterhead of the relevant Chargor]

[Account Bank] To:

[Date]

Dear Sirs.

Common Security Agreement dated [●] 2018 between [CHARGOR] and HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (the Common Security Agreement)

This letter constitutes notice to you that under the Common Security Agreement we have charged (by way of a first floating charge) in favour of HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (as agent and trustee for the Secured Parties as referred to in the Common Security Agreement, the Common Security Agent) all our rights in respect of any amount standing to the credit of any account maintained by us with you (the Accounts).

We irrevocably instruct and authorise you to:

- (a) disclose to the Common Security Agent any information relating to any Account requested from you by the Common Security Agent;
- (b) comply with the terms of any written notice or instruction relating to any Account received by you from the Common Security Agent;
- (c) [hold all sums standing to the credit of the Account to the order of the Common Security Agent;] and
- pay or release any sum standing to the credit of any Account in accordance with the written instructions (d) of the Common Security Agent.

[We are not permitted to withdraw any amount from the Account without the prior written consent of the Common Security Agent.]2

We acknowledge that you may comply with the instructions in this letter without any further permission from us.

The instructions in this letter may not be revoked or amended without the prior written consent of the Common Security Agent.

This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by the laws of Northern Ireland.

Please confirm your agreement to the above by sending the attached acknowledgement to the Common Security Agent at [ADDRESS] with a copy to ourselves.

Yours faithfully,

¹ To be included where the notice is in respect of a blocked Account.

² To be included where the notice is in respect of a blocked Account.

Part 2 Acknowledgement of Account Bank

[On the letterhead of the Account Bank]

To: HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (the Common Security Agent)

Copy: [CHARGOR]

[Date]

Dear Sirs.

Common Security Agreement dated [•] 2018 between [CHARGOR] and HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (the Common Security Agreement)

- 1 We confirm receipt from [CHARGOR] (the Chargor) of a notice dated [] 2018 (the Notice) of a charge upon the terms of the Common Security Agreement over all the rights of the Chargor to any amount standing to the credit of any of the Chargor's accounts with us (the Accounts).
- 2 We confirm that we:
 - (a) accept the instructions contained in the Notice and agree to comply with the notice;
 - (b) have not received notice of the interest of any third party in any Account;
 - (c) [will not permit any amount to be withdrawn from any Account without your prior written consent;]³
 - (d) have neither claimed nor exercised, nor will claim or exercise, any security interest, set-off, counterclaim or other right in respect of any Account.
- 3 The Accounts maintained with us are:

[Specify accounts and account numbers]

- 4 Our acknowledgement of the Notice is subject to the following conditions:
 - (a) we shall not be bound to enquire whether the right of any person (including, but not limited to, the Common Security Agent) to withdraw any monies from the Accounts has arisen or be concerned with (A) the propriety or regularity of the exercise of that right or (B) notice to the contrary or (C) to be responsible for the application of any monies received by such person (including, but not limited to, the Common Security Agent);
 - (b) we shall have no liability for having acted on instructions from any person (including, but not limited to, the Common Security Agent) which on their face appear to be genuine, and which comply with the latest bank mandate held by us or relevant electronic banking system procedures in the case of an electronic instruction;
 - (c) our agreement in this acknowledgement not to exercise any right of combination of accounts, setoff or lien over any monies standing to the credit of the Accounts, shall not apply in relation to our standard bank charges and fees and any cash pooling arrangements provided to the Charger; and

³ To be included where the notice is in respect of a blocked Account.

(d)	we shall not b	e deemed	to be	a	trustee	for	the	Chargor	or the	Common	Security	Agent	of th	he
	Accounts.											-		

5	This letter and any non-contractual	.l obligations	arising ou	ut of o	in :	connection	with it a	are	governed	by	the
	laws of Northern Ireland.										

Yours faithfully,

(Authorised signatory)
[Account Bank]

FORMS OF LETTER FOR RELEVANT CONTRACTS

Part 1 Notice to Counterparty

[On the letterhead of the relevant Chargor]

To: [Contract party]

[Date]

Dear Sirs,

Common Security Agreement dated [] 2018 between [CHARGOR] and HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (the Common Security Agreement)

This letter constitutes notice to you that under the Common Security Agreement we have [assigned by way of security]/[charged by way of a fixed charge] to HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (as agent and trustee for the Secured Parties as referred to in the Common Security Agreement, the Common Security Agent) all our rights in respect of [insert details of [Contract]/[Hedging Agreement]] (the [Contract]/[Hedging Agreement]).

[We confirm that:

- (a) we will remain liable under the Contract to perform all the obligations assumed by us under the Contract;
 and
- (b) none of the Common Security Agent, its agents, any receiver or any other person will at any time be under any obligation or liability to you under or in respect of the Contract.

We will also remain entitled to exercise all our rights, powers and discretions under the Contract, and you should continue to give notices under the Contract to us, unless and until you receive notice from the Common Security Agent to the contrary stating that the security has become enforceable. In this event, all the rights, powers and discretions will be exercisable by, and notices must be given to, the Common Security Agent or as it directs.

Please note that we have agreed that we will not amend or waive any provision of or terminate the Contract without the prior consent of the Common Security Agent [, other than to the extent we are expressly permitted to do so under the terms of the Senior Facilities Agreement.].

[We irrevocably instruct and authorise you to:

- (a) disclose to the Common Security Agent without any reference to or further authority from us and without any inquiry by you as to the justification for the disclosure, any information relating to the Hedging Agreement which the Common Security Agent may request from you; and
- (b) pay any sum payable by you under the Hedging Agreement to our account with [] at [], Sort Code [], Account No. [].]⁵

⁴ To be included in respect of a relevant contract other than a hedging agreement, Asset Management Agreement or FM/Letting Agreement.

⁵ To be included in respect of a relevant contract that is a hedging agreement.

The instructions in this letter apply until you receive notice from the Common Security Agent to the contrary and notwithstanding any previous instructions given by us.]

This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by the laws of Northern Ireland.

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter by sending the attached acknowledgement to the Common Security Agent at [ADDRESS] with a copy to ourselves.

Yours faithfully,
(Authorised signatory)
[CHARGOR]

Part 2 Acknowledgement of Counterparty

HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited as Common Security Agent

To:

Сору:	[CHARGOR]
	[Date]
Dear Si	irs,
	Common Security Agreement dated [●] 2018 between [CHARGOR] and HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (the Common Security Agreement)
assignn	nfirm receipt from [CHARGOR] (the Chargor) of a notice dated [] 2018 (the Notice) of [an nent]/[a fixed charge] on the terms of the Common Security Agreement of all the Chargor's rights in respect rt details of [Contract]/[Hedging Agreement]] (the [Contract]/[Hedging Agreement]).
[We cor	nfirm that we will pay all sums due, and give notices, under the Contract as directed in the Notice.] ⁶
[We cor	nfirm that we:
(a)	have not received notice of the interest of any third party in the Hedging Arrangements;
(b)	must pay any amount payable by us under the Hedging Arrangement to the Chargor's account with [] at [], Sort Code [], Account No. []; and
(c)	must accept your instructions in relation to the Chargor's rights under the Hedging Arrangements.] 7
	ter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by the laws of Ireland.
Yours fa	aithfully,

(Authoris	sed signatory)
[Counter	rparty]

FTo be included in respect of a relevant contract other than a hedging agreement.

 $^{^{7}}$ To be included in respect of a relevant contract that is a hedging agreement.

FORMS OF LETTER FOR INSURER

Part 1 Notice to Insurer

[On the letterhead of the Chargor]

To:	[Insurer]
-----	-----------

[•] 2018

Dear Sirs,

Common Security Agreement dated [•] 2018 between [CHARGOR] and HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (the Common Security Agreement)

This letter constitutes notice to you that under the Common Security Agreement we have assigned by way of security to HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (as agent and trustee for the Secured Parties as referred to in the Common Security Agreement, the Common Security Agent) all our rights in respect of [insert details of insurances].

We irrevocably instruct and authorise you to:

- (a) following notification from the Common Security Agent stating that the security created by the Common Security Agreement has become enforceable, hold any insurance proceeds due and payable to the Chargor to the order of the Common Security Agent until the Common Security Agent gives you written notice otherwise; and
- (b) following notification from the Common Security Agent stating that the security created by the Common Security Agreement has become enforceable, pay or release any insurance proceeds due and payable to the Chargor in accordance with the written instructions of the Common Security Agent for so long as that security remains enforceable.

We acknowledge that you may comply with the instructions in this letter without any further permission from us or enquiry by you.

The instructions in this letter apply until you receive notice from the Common Security Agent to the contrary and notwithstanding any previous instructions given by us.

This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by the laws of Northern Ireland.

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter by sending the attached acknowledgement to the Common Security Agent at [ADDRESS] with a copy to ourselves.

Yours faithfully,

(Authorised signatory)
[CHARGOR]

Part 2 Acknowledgement of Insurer

To: HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited as Common Security Agent

Copy: [CHARGOR]

[Date]

Dear Sirs,

Common Security Agreement dated [•] 2018 between [CHARGOR] and HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (the Common Security Agreement)

We confirm receipt from [CHARGOR] (the Chargor) of a notice dated [] 2018 (the Notice) of an assignment on the terms of the Common Security Agreement of all the Chargor's rights in respect of the Chargor to receive any proceeds of any insurance claim.

We confirm that we:

- (a) accept the instructions contained in the Notice and agree to comply with the notice;
- (b) have not received notice of the interest of any third party in respect of [the relevant insurances]; and
- (c) will pay all sums due to the Chargor and give notices, under the insurance policies, as directed in that notice.

This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by the laws of Northern Ireland.

Yours faithfully,

(Authorised signatory)

[Insurer]

SIGNATORIES

EXECUTE	D as a DEED by)	
CURLEW	THIRD LETTING GP1 LIMITED)	
acting by)	Director Name: T.J. Burger
			Director Name:
Witness			Witness 2
Name	Course Course		Name OLIVER CAPTON
Occupation	Sourcan		Occupation ISAINE DUCITO
Address	Mishcon de Reya LLP Africa House 70 Kingsway London WC2B 6AH		Mishcon de Reya LLP Address Africa House 70 Kingsway London WC2B 6AH

EXECUTED as a DEED by)
CURLEW THIRD LETTING GP2 LIMITED)
acting by	Director Name: T. T. Bunee
Witness 1	Director Name: Witness 2
Name Lonista Cachennay.	Name OLIVEK CHYTON
Occupation SOURITOR	Occupation 10 AIME Salcite
Address Mishcon de Reya LLP Africa House 70 Kingsway London WC2B 6AH	Mishcon de Reya LLP Africa Ho つ 70 Kingsv London W → B 6AH

EXECUTED as a DEED by)
CURLEW THIRD PROPERTY GP1 LIMITED)
acting by)
	Direc
	Name: Karan Hueth
	Raidel Hally
	Disease
	Director
	Name: Julian Lavey
	\mathcal{J}
Witne	Witness 2 Sue Saunders
	Company Secretarial Manage
Name Cvaty Councily	Name
J	
∞ 1	
Occupation Rust & Coup travel	Occupation _
Sevan Adminstrator	
,	Address VISIVa Find Leures
Address VISTOU And Sing	(aueruse) hinted
Cauen hutted	11 New Street
11 New Street	~ , ~ .
	- St Peter Pert
St Peter Part	Quart of
allernoes	Quemsel

EXECUTED as a DEED by)
CURLEW THIRD PROPERTY GP2 LIMITED)
acting by)
	Director
	Name: Kaven Haith
	Direct
	Name: Julian Carey
Witness 1	Witness 2
(νολα Ωσυνούν	Sue Saundere
Name Cravy auwain	Sue Saundere Name
<u> </u>	
Occupation Risks Coupland	Name
<u> </u>	Company Secretarial Management
Occupation Rish's Compliand Senier Administrator	Company Secretarial Management Occupation
Occupation <u>Pish's Couplian</u> Constance Sevin Adminitrater Address <u>Vistra End Sevines</u>	Company Secretarial Management Occupation Address
Occupation Rish's Coupliana Seniar Administrative Address Vistra End Senices (anony) himsed	Company Secretarial Manager Occupation Address
Occupation <u>Pish's Couplian</u> Q Senion Administrator Address <u>Vistora End Senices</u> Canony himked Il New Street	Company Secretarial Manager Occupation Address VISTUA FAL SEMICES (auany) Whited I News west
Occupation <u>Pish's Couplian</u> Q Senion Administrator Address <u>Vistora End Senices</u> Canony himked 11 New Street St Peler But	Company Secretarial Manager Occupation Address
Occupation <u>Pish's Couplian</u> Q Senion Administrator Address <u>Vistora End Senices</u> Canony himked Il New Street	Company Secretarial Manager Occupation Address VISTUA FAL SEMICES (auany) Whited I News west

EXECUTED as a DEED by)
CURLEW THIRD PROPERTY GP2 LIMITED)
acting by)
	Director
	Name: Kaven Haith
	Direct
	Name: Julian Carey
Witness 1	Witness 2
	Sue Saunders
Name Cravy Gawain	Sue Saunders Name
Name Craig Gawain Occupation <u>Pish's Captano</u> Sevin Administration	
Occupation <u>Rish's Carptana</u> Senia Administrativ Address Vistra End Senices	Company Secretarial Management Occupation
Occupation <u>Rish's Couplian</u> Couplian Sevin Administrative Address <u>Vistora Fud Sevines</u> Canony himted	Company Secretarial Manager Occupation Address VISTA Add Sewices Canony Whited
Occupation <u>Rish's Couplian</u> O Sevien Administrative Address <u>Vistora Fud Sevices</u> (avery) himbed 11 Wew Street	Company Secretarial Management Occupation
Occupation <u>Pish's Couplian</u> Q Senion Administrates Address Viotra fud Senices Canony himself Il Went Street St Peler Bot	Company Secretarial Manager Occupation Address VISTA Add Sewices Canony Whited
Occupation <u>Rish's Couplian</u> O Sevien Administrative Address <u>Vistora Fud Sevices</u> (avery) himbed 11 Wew Street	Company Secretarial Manager Occupation Address VISTA Add Sewices Canony Whited

Witnes:	Witness 2
Name Craig Gauvaul	Name Sue Saunders
Occupation RENX Caplano Servia Adminitrate	Occupation
Address Vitu hid Sinces Canemy Winted	Address <u>Vistra Fund Senices</u> (anemsy) hinited Il Nun Stract
11 Now Street St Peter Port	Il Nui Street St Peter Port
alleunsey	anemony

EXECUTED as a DEED by)
CURLEW THIRD LETTING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
acting by its general partners	
CURLEW THIRD LETTING GP1 LIMITED)
acting by	Director
	Name: T. T. Burter
	Director
	Name [.]
Witness 1	Witness 2
	
Name Wigh Collipson	Name OLIVER LAYER
Occupation SOUCITY	Occupation TYAINE DUCCITAL
	Mishcon de Reya LLP
AddressMichoop do Reva II.P.	Africa House 70 Kingswa
Address Mishcon de Reya LLP Africa House	London WC 3 6AH
70 Kingsway London WC2B 6AH	
	-
and CURLEW THIRD LETTING GP2 LIMITED	
) Director
acting by	Director Name:
	T. J. BUTTER
	Director
	Name:

Witnes	Witness 2
Name WMM CUM	Name OLIVER LAYTON
Occupation SULICINA	Occupation TRAINTE XX(())
Address Addres	Mish Mish con de Rb A LLP Afric Africa House Address <u>70 K.70 Kingsway</u> LondLondon WC2B 6AH

Common Security Agent

HSBC CORPORATE TRUSTEE COMPANY (UK) LIMITED

Witness 1	Witness
Name	Andrea Stevenson Name Xuthorised Signatory
Occupation 12. willow Mc . Cyc	Occupation TRANSACTION METALLICITY
Address Chloe Slattery ASBC Bank plc Canada Square London	Address HSBC Bank plc R Canada Square London E14 5HQ